MINUTES OF MEETING GRIFFIN LAKES
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The special meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Griffin Lakes Community Development District was held on Thursday, July 14, 2022 at 9:30 a.m. at the Courtyard by Marriott, Fort Lauderdale Airport & Cruise Port, 400 Gulf Stream Way, Dania Beach, Florida.

Present and constituting a quorum were:

Teresa West Linda Armstrong Benny Barak Madeline DiComo Danielle Christie
 Chairman Vice Chairman
Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary



Also present were:

Ginger Wald Paul Winkeljohn Patrick Burgess Juliana Duque Nicole Vernon Doug Pawmy Peter Marocco
 District Counsel District Manager
Governmental Management Services Governmental Management Services (by phone) Resident
Resident Resident


FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS	Roll Call
Mr. Winkeljohn called the meeting to order and called the roll.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS	Approval of Minutes of the April
14, 2022 Meeting
Mr. Winkeljohn: The first item is your minutes from your April 14, 2022 meeting and have been circulated in your package, if those are in order, a motion would be welcomed, or any corrections we could take those as well.
Ms. Armstrong: I would just like to get all of the I knows, and you knows, and urns out of what I say.
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Mr. Winkeljohn:	Yes, verbatim minutes are funny like that. Is there a motion to approve?

On MOTION by Ms. Armstrong seconded by Ms. West with all in favor, the Minutes of the April 14, 2022 Meeting were approved.


THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS	Public Hearing to Adopt the Fiscal
Year 2023 Budget
	Motion to Open the Public Hearing

Mr. Winkeljohn: The main reason we're all gathered here today in this lovely hotel is to finalize your budget process, and that requires a public hearing to start that process, so we would like a motion to open the public hearing. Is there a motion?

On MOTION by Ms. West seconded by Mr. Armstrong with all in favor, opening the Public Hearing was approved.


	Public Comment and Discussion

Mr. Winkeljohn: At this time, it's the public comment portion of today's public hearing, the residents were given a mailed notice to be invited here and I see two members of the public here. Do either of you have anything you'd like to comment about today's proposed budget? I know there is an assessment increase proposed, the Board can choose to adopt the proposed budget or a lower amount. I don't know what they're going to do but, any input or comments are welcomed.
Mr. Pawmy: Well, my name is Doug. I know a few people here, I've lived here 2 years, so I got the letter a couple of weeks ago, and $1,000 maintenance, I mean assessment to maintain the lakes, that sounds like an awful lot of money number one. Even though I'm a public high school teacher, the economy is the worst that it's been in 40 years. I was the vice president of a townhouse association several years ago, and I tried to get a special assessment through to make some seriously needed repairs to our buildings, there were some structural things that needed to be improved, and I was voted off the Board because it was $1,000 special assessment, and people said I'm on a fixed income I can't afford that, and then we had other people saying, I'm just not going to pay it, I'm not going to pay you, you pass a ridiculous assessment like that I am not going to
pay it. Sure, we could put a lien on their property, but if it's an investor and they're not planning on selling for 20 years, they don't care about a lien on their property. So, I would like to, first of all, know what you mean by maintaining the lake?
Mr. Winkeljohn: I can answer that, for clarification, it's a restoration of a lake bank system, the lake bank is the main obligation of the COD, which is the infrastructure, particularly drainage infrastructure. When the bank is failing, when it's losing its slope, it can't hold the amount of water it's designed for, so you jeopardize flooding the units, which is not acceptable.
Mr. Pawmy: Is that why the lakes go down when we have rain, and then they go
up?
Mr. Winkeljohn:	All of the above, yes, it stabilizes literally the bank, but they're
designed to pick up more and more volume as the slope goes away, and that last part of the volume is when you have what's called the 20 year, or 50 year or 100-year storm level, that last foot is actually almost 70% of the whole capacity of the whole lake.
Mr. Pawmy: Ok, thanks for explaining that because the letter just said maintenance on the lake.
Ms. Duque: And just really fast, I'm sorry to interrupt, I believe his name is Doug, but just so he knows that the Board of Supervisors actually retained an engineering firm to conduct that analysis. There was an analysis made to those lakes and they were the ones who determined what needed to be done in terms of the repairs for the lakes, so this has been a process that I could say that we've been working on for the past year, so that we could understand what the need was on those lakes and how much the project will cost the community. This is a one-time increase, meaning you will see this increase, if the Board approves it, for this year, but we can lower that amount for the upcoming years.
Mr. Winkeljohn: So, it's intended to be a one-time.
Mr. Pawmy: Ok, so like I said, I just wanted to say, I don't even live on the lake, I don't even look at the lakes, and there's going to be a lot of people that say, if you pass a huge assessment like that, they're going to be a lot of people that say, I'm not paying.
Mr. Winkeljohn: That's fine.
Ms. Wald: Well, if they don't pay because it's on your tax bill, that means they don't pay their taxes. If you don't pay your taxes, and the mortgage company doesn't
step in and pays it, which normally is what happens, then it's going to go to a tax deed sale, and that person is going to lose their house, so they're going to pay it. This is not HOA and let me explain the difference between HOA and COD briefly, so HOA they put a lien on your house which will eventually go up for foreclosure, but this is different. The COD is a governmental entity, the special assessments that we have are actually Non-Ad Valorem taxes, they get placed on your tax bill, so you will see a line on your tax bill, and you should see it every year, so you will see a line on your tax bill for this COD. So, when you pay your taxes, whether your mortgage company pays it as part of your escrow or you pay it yourself, you are paying that amount as well. If you choose not to pay that, and the Tax Collector, in this case, it's Broward County, the Tax Collector will go ahead and they will proceed forward with issuing a tax certificate, then an investor can buy the tax certificate, the interest gets put on top of that, and if you don't want to lose your house in a tax deed sale, then you have to pay even more money, it's called redemption.
Mr. Pawmy: Ok.
Ms. Wald: So, it's different.
Mr. Pawmy: Ok, it's a little bit different from an HOA.
Ms. Wald: Yes, it's a lot different when it comes to collections.
Mr. Pawmy: Ok, alright, I suppose that's nice, but it's still a lot of money to ask some people to pay and I just hope that the Board takes into consideration, can't we do this over a period of years instead of smacking everybody for something, I mean it's a lot of money and if you told me the pool was collapsing or if you told me our roofs were collapsing and we needed a special assessment, that's one thing.
Mr. Winkeljohn: It's not much different.
Ms. Wald: Well, the difference is, you have to understand this, the pools, your roofs, that's HOA, this is COD, and the obligation of this Board who are sitting here today, not only as residents but as public officials for the COD, for the governmental entity, they have a responsibility from a legal aspect, and a fiduciary aspect to make sure that they maintain the infrastructure that the COD is responsible for, the lake banks is the most important and that's their obligation. There are a few choices that the Board can make. They could do what they have talked about in the last few meetings, which is to do a one time band-aid, pull it off, and we can get this project done next year before prices continue to increase, and then we're done or do small increments and hope after a few
years, we don't have a collapsed lake, or some other type of problem, or flooding, and we can get it done then. It's one decision or the other, and this Board has decided at least when they did the proposed budget, and they talked about it for hours, I sat in them, and they decided that it was in the best interest of this District from the Board's perspective to do a one-time assessment, get it done, and then we can go back and lower it, because this Board was able to refinance over a year ago the debt and lower the amount, and so that provided more balance and fund balance to actually not even increase it higher as they really would have otherwise they needed to.
Mr. Pawmy: That's actually good information, that would be nice if that kind of had been in the letter, all the letter said was our lakes need maintenance.
Ms. Wald: Well, the letter is a statutory requirement and actually that doesn't even need to be in there but, that information was placed in that letter, not everything can be placed in the letter, because these meetings are advertised, letters are sent out, they're advised we're meeting here, as opposed to the little HOA office because we thought there were be more people, and open to the public so you could discuss it. The Board hasn't made a decision yet, today is the day for them to make the final decision, so they will take the input that each one of you, and whoever else shows up, provides today as to the budget to make that decision, so it is good to be here.
Mr. Pawmy: And my neighbor, Peter, has a good suggestion as well, and he's going to talk in a minute.
Ms. Armstrong: Well, I gave you, and I took apart our agenda for the meeting that they were presenting the engineering project, and that's all in there and you can see how extensive it is. They're going to have to drill into the sides of the lakes and put pipes in, they're going to have to re-elevate the lake that has the bulkheads, that over the past 17 or 18 years, has started to rot, and so were doing the band-aids on the poles and then the tops we're sealing and replacing to make the fences stable because it's not even stable anymore, it can go like this, so it's bad. So, it's a 4 to 1 slope that you have to have, and several of the lakes, there's two especially that are bad that they have to work on, they should have addressed a year ago, and we've just been caught up in red tape, and money, and trying to do the right thing because now we know it is a problem, and it has to be addressed. So, I don't know if we've received it yet or not saying what your taxes are going to be in November.
Mr. Winkeljohn: You get that in August. Ms. Wald: No, you didn't.
Ms. Armstrong: Ok, so when you get that, you'll see on the line for COD that it has increased by $1,000 roughly, and that you know in August it's not until November, and you can pay your taxes quarterly. So, then it's $250 you really have to come up with, but yes, it's a lot for one year, but this I believe is going to get us up to a level where we don't have to address it for maybe 20 more years or so.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, they can last that long.
Ms. Armstrong: So, if the COD had a reserve there would have been a line item for it and we would have had the funds but, we don't. So, we're between a rock and a hard place on getting it done, the longer we wait, the more erosion we have, and some of it even came from iguanas tunneling.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Absolutely.
Ms. Armstrong: And then the water came through, more water rushed out, more gets in the bottom and then that's sludge, so I believe, I'm not sure but, I think they're sucking that out, they're just making the lakes the way they should be, and even though I don't have a lake, you don't have a lake, we didn't pay a premium for that, but that is our drainage system, that protects the whole area from floods, so we are reaping a benefit from it, and the lakes you use for irrigation, so we're not paying a water bill for that. So, they are important, I suggested we just fill them in and put more parking spaces, but they said no you can't do that.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Are there any other public comments?
A resident: I have a couple of questions. Who was that on the phone? Ms. Wald: Peter, do me a favor and just say your name for the record. Mr. Marocco: I am Peter Marocco.
Ms. Wald: Thank you Peter. That's Juliana Duque, she's on maternity leave, and she's on the phone, that's who's on the phone.
Mr. Marocco: Ok.
Ms. Wald:	She's with GMS, she's with the management company.	This Board switched management companies over a year ago.
Mr. Marocco: Yes, I am aware of that, ok, that's one question. So, when I got the letter in the mail I kind of tried to figure out what's going on and I went to the website and
went to the January minutes and there were 3 different options that dealt with the lake, what were those different options? I remember some time ago the lakes, when they were built, or when the complex was built, the county standards at that portion in time, and then since then the county standards had changed, but does that mean this is going to try to make it to the new standards or is this basically the maintenance without that, or are we still staying within the standards that were in effect when the lakes were built?
Ms. Armstrong: I don't think we're going to get the slope back to the original slope, it's still going to be less. Now you know from your experience on this Board how we've been talking about the slopes and the erosion and the distance of the water from the people's properties and all of those limitations.
Mr. Marocco: Right.
Ms. Armstrong: That's not an option, everything that we thought of nothing came to fruition.
Mr. Marocco: I remember one particular day when we got some rain, a lot of rain, and went to look at the lake, and the water level went up to, pretty close to my neighbor's pavers in the back, so the lakes were doing what they were supposed to do in terms of flood control but, there is a danger to the folks, and I think part of the problem as I recall was that part of the lake maintenance was in the COD, another part was on the HOA side, and I think the grass around it was on the HOA, and then there was some coordination that was supposed to happen.
Ms. Armstrong: Well, there was confusion, remember we kept asking whose responsibility is it, and it's been determined that is the CDD's, and so that's another reason why we're bringing it up.
Mr. Marocco: So, the lakes are now the responsibility of the COD?
Ms. Armstrong: The bulkheads, and all of that, but it is the CDD's responsibility from what we heard last.
Mr. Marocco: Ok, I was just wondering if it would make sense to put it off.
Mr. Armstrong: And what did they say, what the point was, it's like where the water's edge is right?
Ms. Wald: Yes, it's the water's edge, so it's an ebb and flow, and it's in, and I don't have the documents with me, but it's in the engineers report specifically as to the lines of
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demarcation for the ownership of the COD as to the lakes, but it is part of the lake banks. I can't tell you exactly the line that is for those professionals to provide.
Mr. Marocco: I was just wondering if it made sense of the actual maintenance of the lakes under the HOA with the funding being handed from the COD to the HOA but having the COD overseeing that things are being done correctly.
Ms. Wald: Again, we've gone through different maintenance recently, the beginning of last year to enter into a maintenance agreement with the HOA, we do have a maintenance agreement with the HOA, but this is a project that the COD has to undertake first and then proceed forward with the continued maintenance.
Mr. Marocco: Ok, because for a long time I think the lakes weren't maintained properly because this divided responsibility, and as you said, it was then a question of who's authority is it to do this or that, and I think that would be possibly addressed by putting it off to the HOA, and then providing them with the funds to do it.
Ms. Wald: So, you have to go back in time, the COD, and you weren't on the Board, this was in the last year, but the COD does have a maintenance agreement with the HOA, with a component that also has an amount being paid by the COD for the HOA entering into the contract, and overseeing the maintenance of all COD responsibilities. This increase is specifically, as we talked about before with Doug, is specifically related to the cost that is going to be incurred by the COD when the COD enters into a contract sometime in the next fiscal year with a contractor to actually restore the lake banks, fix the bulkheads, everything that has been identified in the expert report from Landshore Enterprises, and the District's new engineer which is Alvarez Engineering, so there's a new engineer too.
Mr. Marocco: Ok. So, going forward in terms of managing a couple of lakes, is that handed over to the HOA property manager, the COD would be doing the oversight basically?
Ms. Wald: Correct.
Mr. Marocco: Ok, so because of this question of who's authority was it, over so many years, then what is being done?
Ms. Wald: That has been corrected. Mr. Marocco: Ok.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, there's no dispute, it's very clear.
Ms. Wald: It's corrected now, and it was corrected as of sometime last year or close to last year, and I go by fiscal year, so it was as to last fiscal year.
Mr. Marocco: So, as long as the COD is collecting the money for the maintenance, then the COD has a responsibility of overseeing the spending of the money, and even though it was handed over, the actual work of the maintenance handed over to the HOA, the COD still has to oversee the money, so it's just the problem of who's hands are doing the work then.
Ms. Wald: It's the checks and balances. Mr. Marocco: Ok.
Ms. Wald: And Peter, if you want a copy, we can get you a copy of the maintenance agreement which I think there's one amendment that was done with the COD, and the condo association, if you want that, I keep saying HOA, but I know it's a condo association.
Mr. Marocco: And actually about 2 years ago I kind of stepped back and let you guys do the work, and I got this thing in the mail, and I said okay what's going on?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Alright, those are good thoughtful questions as well, I appreciate them. Ma'am, did you have some comments?
Ms. Vernon: Yes, Nicole Vernon. (Inaudible comment)
Mr. Winkeljohn: If there's a chance you could come up closer, we're recording this meeting and it's going to be a little hard to hear from that far away.
Ms. Vernon: Alright. Yes, I'm Nicole Vernon. I'm sorry I missed the initial part of the meeting.
Ms. Wald: We're just talking about the budget, Nicole. Ms. Vernon: Yes, just the budget.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, we're under the public comment portion of the budget hearing.
Ms. Vernon: That's fine. Again, just my concern is that I just want to reiterate from previous meetings, since I've been attending every meeting since, I believe, July of last year, but I think that what was displayed in the letter that we received as residents of just the one-time charge being put on our tax bill, I think is adequate and fair because they haven't been maintained over the 17 years. I've been a resident for, I believe, 6 years now, but I just also want to reiterate to the Board, although you don't have to be an expert
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in erosion, you have to be an expert in maintenance and reading these things. If your doctor tells you that you need a procedure, you don't wait 4 to 5 years to get things done, and I know that this has been a known issue for 4 to 5 years, and this is costing a lot, and it's probably more money in the long run than it could have been. I also know that there's seats that are up that are now unopposed, and we have lifers on this Board in November, and a lot of residents that I have spoken to are really disheartened, but we have to rip the band-aid off and just take care of the issue, at this point in time but, know going forward that there has to be maintained and again, look at these things going forward and maintain them so that we're not hit with these assessments because even though I'm not involved on the Board, I do come to these meetings, I do talk to the residents, I do run the community Facebook page, and they're upset. They might not be here because it's 9:30 on a Thursday morning and they work, but they're pissed, they don't want to be charged
$1,500 for a lake that they don't live on, they don't understand that it also helps with the sprinkler system and all of that stuff and they don't have the pretty views, and also all of the other things that it contributes to, and like I said, it could have been far less than
$1,500 for all of us especially when times are tough and inflation is skyrocketing, so those are my comments, thank you.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Thank you. Are there any other comments? So, everyone has spoken and at this time it would be appropriate for the Board to close the public portion of the hearing.
Mr. Marocco: I do have another question. Does this also include getting rid of all those things that people threw in the lakes over the years, maybe bicycles or boats there?
Ms. West: Well, actually the lake should have been cleaned out numerous times,
but the guy that comes in and does the lakes, doesn't clean out the lakes, he just goes in and checks the fish and this and that and the other, and I think there's been numerous times we've tried to get people to go in and clean the lakes, but we wait until things happen and then we have this kind of problem.
Ms. Armstrong: And I've addressed the erosion problem for 6 years, and first it was, oh, we're going to put bubblers in everything, and then the bubblers couldn't be installed because we didn't have electricity, and we got the runaround. It was a very poor management company, and that's water under the bridge but, I couldn't even get an
answer of where the line of demarcation was, and number two, what the slope requirements were, they couldn't even tell us that, and it did take almost 3 years to get rid of the management company.
Mr. Barak: And the engineer.
Ms. Armstrong: Yes, and the engineer. I mean we just had bad information too, but we are just residents, we are not engineers, and we rely on what the management company that we pay good money for to tell us and we didn't get good information.
Mr. Barak: I also wanted to kind of jump back to your original question of the three options, and we did discuss at length the different options, whether we can do, we're talking about 5 lakes here, I think 3 of them are high priority, or something along those lines, one of the medium and the other one is low, so we discussed doing this in phases, and Doug kind of to answer your question, hey can we split it up, and it just ended up being not only a lot more time consuming because you have to get crews to come in at different times to do different lakes and it creates chaos, there's a mess, and obviously you notice all this stuff going on, but also, in the long run, it would be a lot more expensive. So, we did decide after discussing it in length and this kind of goes back to Nicole's point where it's kind of just ripping off the band-aid to kind of do everything at once and, yes, you are getting hit with one big bill seemingly on the front end, but it almost made more sense. We looked at getting a loan, which was the other option to fund this, and it would have just ended up being a lot more expensive in the long run. Maybe not one big hit initially, but just financially, it didn't make sense, and then, from logistically to speak of, it also would have been a nightmare I think for the community. So, we did look at the other options, but after all the discussions and everything, that it made more sense to do it all at one time, so I don't want you to think that we said, ok, we're going to go ahead with this, no we had numerous meetings, and hours of discussions and stuff, and this really did make the most sense.
Mr. Marocco: Ok.
Ms. West: And remember, you do have the option because it's on your tax bill, so your tax bill, either you pay it all at once or pay it in increments, quarterly, so you don't have to pay it all at once.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And actually, the escrow system, it's going to delay it even further because your escrow won't react to it until February or March and then they'll split it up
over 12 months in the new escrow amount. So, you'll actually be paying, if you have an escrow, you'll be paying it in that cycle with a bank, so it spreads it out naturally.
Ms. Duque: And Paul, just to add to that, you'd be talking about $90 per month increase if people do it on the escrow company.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, exactly thanks Juliana.
Ms. Armstrong:	I move that we close the open comment portion of the budget hearing.

On MOTION by Ms. Armstrong seconded by Mr. Christie with all in favor, closing the public comment and discussion portion of the Public Hearing was approved.


	Consideration of Resolution #2022-03 Annual Appropriation Resolution

Mr. Winkeljohn: That brings us to item C, which is resolution #2022-03, which is the actual assessment level and the accompanying budget, which includes what we've covered at length in not just today's meeting, but prior meetings, and the need to restore the lakes with a one-time expense. The other items of the budget I think are reflective of many years of history and are not of any significant change. It's at this time that the Board would discuss or if you're already prepared, you can move to adopt resolution #2022-03 setting the assessment as proposed.
Ms. West: I think we've discussed this so much.
Ms. Wald: You have definitely discussed this multiple times, that is correct.
Ms. Armstrong: And even though it's not going to be popular, and I don't really agree with it either but, I think the one-time assessment, just one year, for the restoration of the lakes is the best way to go, so is that option A?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes.
Ms. Armstrong: Ok, I move that we accept it.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And resolution #2022-03 reflects that, so that's a motion from Linda. Is there a second?

On MOTION by Ms. Armstrong seconded by Mr. Barak with all in favor, Resolution #2022-03 the Annual Appropriation Resolution was approved.
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	Consideration of Resolution #2022-04 Levy of Non Ad Valorem Assessments

Mr. Winkeljohn: So, that wraps that up. Now, that you know how much money you need to have, you have to figure out a way to get it, and resolution #2022-04 is the best deal in the world and we let the county do it for us, it's called the Non Ad Valorem Assessment procedure and that's wrapped up in that resolution, and I highly recommend approval by motion.
Ms. Armstrong: Is it costly?
Mr. Winkeljohn: It's the same one you've always used. Ms. Armstrong: Ok, so moved.

On MOTION by Ms. Armstrong seconded by Ms. DiComo with all in favor, Resolution #2022-04 Levy of Non Ad Valorem Assessments was approved.


	Motion to Close the Public Hearing

Mr. Winkeljohn:	Excellent work to you all, is there a motion to close the public hearing?

On MOTION by Ms. Armstrong seconded by Ms. Christie with all in favor, closing the Public Hearing was approved.



FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Staff Reports
Mr. Winkeljohn: Alright that brings us to staff reports, Ginger?

	Attorney

Ms. Wald: Nothing today. Mr. Winkeljohn: Thank you.

	Engineer
	Confirmation Email for 20-Year Stormwater Needs Analysis
	2022 Annual Engineer's Report

Mr. Winkeljohn: Under the engineer's report, there's a copy of the confirmation of your 20-year stormwater analysis, that was received by Broward County, and so no action required there. Item No. 2 is the 2022 annual engineer's report, it's very similar to all the things you guys have been discussing.  I don't see Juan on the phone, but it
sounds like you all were pretty comfortable with just accepting this engineer's report, because you've been dealing with it for months, it sounds like. So, it would be appropriate to have a motion, and it's more procedural that you accept the engineer's report because you're not the engineer, he is, so a motion to accept the engineer's report would be appropriate.
Ms. Duque: Paul?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, go ahead Juliana.
Ms. Duque: Just to add really fast, so the Board is aware, we also have a copy of the new ownership map together with the report presented by Alvarez Engineering, Juan Alvarez, and so there was not a need for him to be with us today. The Board might recall that every time we have the engineer attending the meetings, it costs the District money.
Ms. Wald: But if you look at the engineer's report, I think that is what Juliana is saying, if you go to the exhibits, what she was saying is that it shows the COD land ownership has the aerial with the numbers, and then actually, if you go down below the aerial it has the ownership information and then exhibit 2 is the easements that the COD has over the condo association property.
Ms. Duque: Correct, Ginger.
Ms. Wald: Juliana, you broke off, so I continued on for you.
Ms. Duque: Ok, sorry about that, I think it's my connection, so I was just saying to the Board that this is something that we have discussed during the past meetings, we wanted to have a clear understanding of areas being owned and maintained by the District, so that we can continue with our maintenance agreement with the condo association making sure everybody is paying their proper part. So, Juan Alvarez presented us as well with the ownership map, the one that describes the areas owned and maintained by the District. So, this is just to continue with the work that we've been doing in the past months.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Thank you, so it's appropriate for you all to approve the engineer's report as a record of the District by motion, is there a motion?
Ms. Armstrong: I just have a question. Am I correct that the way the lakes are numbered is incorrect?
Mr. Winkeljohn: So, you number them differently than his report? Ms. Armstrong: Yes.
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Ms. Wald: It really doesn't matter how they're numbered specifically in the report, because if you go down, the legal description is provided, so if he says it's lake #1, it's really not #1, it's just providing an index and the key for the index as to #1, #2, #3, #4 and #5, so he's not renumbering them, he's just showing it here.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, he just used that as a labeling process for his report.
Ms. Wald: As a key, that's all, it's not renumbering your lakes as you're used to it. Ms. Armstrong: Ok.
Ms. Wald: So, what he's doing here is he's just providing the legal description, the folio number for each one of those lakes.
Ms. Armstrong: Ok.
Mr. Winkeljohn:	Are there any other questions on the engineer's report?	Not hearing any, is there a motion to accept?

On MOTION by Ms. Armstrong seconded by Ms. DiComo with all in favor, accepting the 2022 Annual Engineer's Report was approved.


	Field
	Waterway Management Reports with Advanced Aquatic
	Ratification of Invoice #44341, #44423 and #44424 with Cutters Edge Lawn & Maintenance, Inc.

Mr. Winkeljohn: That brings us to field reports, and I saw in your packets that you
have the waterway management reports from Advance Aquatic in there. Is there any discussion or questions, and obviously Juliana is the most familiar with it but it's in your book for reference only?
Ms. Duque: And just for reference, so that the Board is aware the services are being provided according to the contract, and as soon as you get to the next item, I can jump in again.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Ok, and there's no action on the water reports, they're just information.
Ms. Duque: Ok, I was just waiting to see if the Board had any questions about that. So really fast as well, next to that report we also have attached some of the invoices that we need the Board to ratify. During the last meeting, the Board of Supervisors approved for Harry to do some landscape work, and some plant material
replacement, and there was just one Board question the proposal that we did not get approvals, so we wanted to mention the work and the price, but the Board said it was ok for Harry to proceed with it. They trusted the work that was going to be done, and so I would like to inform the Board that the work cost $18,500.  In addition to that, the
$18,500, we have a $1,950 invoice attached in your agenda as well, and another one for
$740, which pretty much brings us up to and over the budget. We have encountered for our landscape replacement $20,000 and with the work that was performed for this past month, brought it up $21,190, so we are $1,190 over the budget. The Board might recall that I was very emphatic and very strong about making sure that amount was number one, touched just if it was necessary, and number two, to make sure we keep within our budget. So, I will leave it up to the Board, once again, there isn't much that we can do, we have an agreement with the condo association for that maintenance to be performed, and as you can see, I'm bringing back to the Board, I am concerned, and this is something that I would like the Board of Supervisors to be on top of. I believe, and I have mentioned this during the past meetings, that the control should be on the Board of Supervisors. If you pass this to someone to kind of handle the day-to-day activities of the District, I think there is not an issue when we have contracts and each contract has different vendors that are supposed to provide a certain service for those months, but if we are moving forward with additional work, once again, it's my strong advice for the Board of Supervisors that those need to be presented to the Board, approved by the Board, and then be completed by that person in charge, but once again, it's up to the Board to decide how you want to proceed moving forward, and if there are any discussions you would like to have at this point.
Ms. Armstrong: So, would this be reflected in our April 14th meeting, the minutes? Ms. West: Yes.
Mr. Winkeljohn: It's in there, yes, I saw that.
Ms. West: We had discussed having Harry, or the office take over or actually at the meeting, I think it was taking over those jobs that we shouldn't have let them do because we didn't have enough money in there for him to do the wall, and when we had a problem with a tree we went on a replaced that, so we let him do what he wanted to do before he left, and he put us in a hole. If you remember, I did not want Harry to take
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over, but you all wanted to, so I agreed but, you see where it put it us there. The HOA or the office should not have control of our money.
Ms. Armstrong: And Juliana, you were here on April 14th when all of this went down, correct?
Ms. Duque: Yes, that's the conversation that we had, and Terry even mentioned during that meeting, Harry presented to the Board that there was a need to do certain changes to the landscape, the area close to the hotel.
Ms. Armstrong: And that was because of the bug infestation, correct?
Ms. Duque: And we questioned the proposal, we didn't have a proposal, and he said, "but I have the money and I know how much I kind of have to use" pretty much was the conversation, and the Board approved for him to proceed with the work, but we didn't have a proposal.
Ms. Armstrong: But whenever we approved something like that, we always say not to exceed "X", and I'm trying to find that in here and I can't.
Ms. West: But he did exceed it, we only had $20,000.
Ms. Armstrong: Is it in the minutes, what we approved? I can't find it.
Ms. DiComo: Yes, where is this in the minutes, do you know, because I thought it was that he was supposed to give that proposed budget to us or to Juliana.
Ms. West: But we didn't get a proposal. Ms. Armstrong: We didn't right.
Ms. West:	He just bid it, he took the ficus out on that wall and put brand new
plants.
Mr. Barak: But we wanted that.
Ms. Armstrong: Because there was an infestation. Mr. Barak: Right.
Ms. West: That was fine, but it cost us $18,000 to put new ones in when we didn't
have the money. I don't approve of the management company association taking over. I don't approve that whatsoever, and I tried to explain that to you guys. You wanted it to be your way.
Ms. Armstrong: And I still do, but I would just like to see in the minutes where it says that, because we wouldn't have approved it unless we put a limit on it.
Ms. West: We did put a limit on it. (Inaudible comments)
Ms. Wald: I don't see it in the April 14th minutes.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, these are April minutes, but it sounds like you're looking at the February minutes.
Ms. Wald: Right, it sounds like it was February.
Mr. Barak: These are February minutes, are we talking about a conversation that we had in April? I mean this says February 10th, so these are the minutes of the February 1oth meeting, so that would explain why we're not finding it in the April minutes. Ms. Wald: Ok, so what's attached to the agenda that I have in front of me are the
April minutes.
Mr. Barak: Why does it say approval of the minutes of February 10th? Ms. Wald: Because in April you approved February's minutes.
Mr. Barak: Ok, so these are minutes from the April meeting. Ms. Wald: Look on the top.
Mr. Barak: Right, that's why I'm trying to clarify it here. Ms. Wald: You approved February's minutes in April.
Mr. Barak: Ok, but these are minutes from the April meeting.
Ms. Wald: Correct. So, I don't see it in these minutes for April, so my question is did we do it in February?
Ms. DiComo: I think it was February.
Ms. Armstrong: I mean we've had so few meetings it's hard to not remember, I remember we discussed it.
Ms. Wald: Well, from my notes and again, it's just my yellow pad, not the official minutes which I believe he's looking them up right now, we had a motion to approve the increase for landscaping irrigation with Cutter's Edge that went back to January 1, 2022, so that was just the fuel increase and the labor increase. We had a motion to ratify the amount of $200.87 to purchase and installation of the lake signs, but that's all I have. The March meeting was cancelled, and then April, and then the next meeting was cancelled after April.
Ms. Armstrong: Ok, so this is the first meeting in 91 days. Ms. West: Yes.
Ms. Wald: I remember the discussion, I could not tell you when it was, but I do remember the discussion because I remember that Terry was vehemently against it.
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Ms. West: Yes.
Ms. Christie: I think it was February.
Ms. Wald: So, let's look at the February minutes.
Ms. West: I think we talked about it a couple of times, and then in the April meeting, you guys wanted Harry to take over. (Inaudible comment) I doesn't really matter, but my point of it is, I don't believe associates should have any kind of oversee whatsoever, if they want to come in here and listen to us, that's fine.
Ms. DiComo: Remember the problem was it that some things were being double done, or doubly billed, so if we wanted to have some kind of consistency in that, then ok, well, if we're going to just take care of the inside or the wall parts from the COD then it would be ok, well if they're going to be here already for regular maintenance all the time, it only made sense, but at the same time, my understanding was that if there was going to be a huge work, and this was a big project, that it was going to be submitted and they wouldn't pay them more than what we can get it for, so that's what my assumption was.
Ms. West: Right, but we didn't even get any cost, we didn't even know what it was going to cost us.
Mr. Winkeljohn: I think the topic really is two-fold, just to sort of bring this all into the same picture, in the future, she's clearly saying let's not do that again, make sure your new management agreement and your new staff are trained so that when they give a not to exceed they don't go past it, and if they do go past it, somebody else pays for it, like the contractor reduces their invoice at the end of it as a credit, that type of thing, or it comes back to the Board before it's authorized. So, that's best practice, and normal practice when you have multiple parties performing your work for you, and that's what Juliana is trying to say, and I think that's the message to the Board. From my perspective, it's less than 10% or only a small percent over the budget, I can see in your budget you have contingency lines and such, so you are capable of absorbing that, I think the takeaway is the lesson, which is to have a better relationship with the person implementing it.
Ms. Armstrong: Well, we needed to have more checks and balances.
Ms. Duque: Correct Paul, and I'm sorry if you were not able to hear me a couple of times but, I don't know, for some reason my connection is not good, but that's exactly the point. I am not concerned in terms of the over-budget amount that we have to take
now, it's more about in the future I want us to be, and I want the new manager who should come to take the day-to-day activities of the District that we want to make sure that, if it is per the contract that we currently have, then I don't see an issue, services should be provided once again as per the contracts that we have, but any additional work, should be presented to the Board. The Board should have the proposal in their hands and, that way, make a responsible decision about what direction you would like to move forward with because that's my concern.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Certainly, a lesson learned.
Ms. Duque: Right now, and I have expressed this to the Board of Supervisors, the lake is an important item right now, the restoration of the lake is what we need to put our efforts into, the community, it's beautiful as it is, we just need to make sure we continue with the services in terms of the landscaping, so if there is an emergency or repair that needs to be done in terms of landscaping or irrigation we can afford those but, we need to be a little bit more proactive and conservative when it comes to any additional work being done in the District.
Ms. DiComo: Now, we've been with Cutter's Edge for a while, is there a way they can negotiate or slide those funds over or something?
Ms. Wald: Well, here's the thing, we're talking about two different things. One, the Cutter's Edge Agreement, and I'm going to go back in time a little bit, so let's go back so we're all on the same page and also with the public here, and I know you've been to all the meetings, so you've heard it all, you probably have a total recollection of this but, for the other members who weren't there. So, the condo association and the CDD entered into a maintenance agreement in which the condo association took an assignment of the current contracts from the COD, and one was Cutter's Edge. So, now the condo association has the contract with Cutter's Edge, so the condo association is really the party in that aspect. From that management agreement we revised it because there was an issue as to how the money was, from an accounting standpoint, going directly to the condo association to pay for each one of those contractors and vendors that were providing the services that they took the assignment of contracts and originally, I think we had it on, a quarterly basis or something along those lines, and then eventually we went ahead and we did an amendment to that contract, and I'm going from my memory. We did an amendment to that contract where each one of the invoices instead was going to
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be presented to GMS as the District manager, and the District manager at that point would go ahead and review, and confirm that the work was done, as per the budget, as per our agreement with the condo association and pay, so that's what we have in place currently. In regard to this, and when I say this, I'm talking about these different invoices that were submitted by the condo association to GMS and representative of the COD, and the amount set forth. Now, the one amount $18,500, seems to be some items that are included in the maintenance agreement and some items that are extra. The other two that are in your book, the smaller amounts, do seem to be extra items, and when I mean extra, I'm talking about additional plantings, not regular maintenance that we had. So, the limitation for the condo association for the manager who is no longer there, Harry Goldberg, was that he knew exactly what the budgeted amount was for two facts, the budgeted amount for the regular landscape maintenance, because we knew what the contract was because we did approve, this Board did approve that small increase because of everything going up, to Cutter's Edge, and then the second part from it is the additional work. Again, when I'm saying additional work, additional landscaping, replacing dead things, adding new things, those types of things, so there were two budget items for that. As to the secondary part from what I'm seeing and again, I'm extrapolating, I don't know if this is 100% correct but, from what I'm seeing is you have the additional work that was done that is outside your budget, and so, with that this Board has a few options because this budget that we're talking about goes all the way to September 30th and we're at July 14th, so if you go ahead and you expend the full amount from your budget, and the additional from your reserves, you're done, so keep that in mind, unless there's some additional reserves that you could possibly tap into for something else. The other part is, what was the authorization by this Board, or the District manager on behalf of the Board, because you gave the District manager certain authority as well under the contract, to permit or authorize, let's use the word authorize, the condo association through their prior manager, Harry Goldberg, to proceed forward with these costs. So, those are the two different things for everybody, that I see, are the issues that are in front of you right now.
Ms. Armstrong: This is how I remember it, in February we said we weren't going
to have a meeting in March, we didn't know we weren't going to have a meeting in April. So, anyway, in the meeting where we were discussing this because of the infestation and
the neighbors complaining about the cars being damaged and whatever, those fiscus needed to go, and even the roots were impacting the wall, so it was good to have it done, and we felt that there was an urgency to that part. Now, I agree with Terry about making it beautiful again, but Harry said I don't have the proposal, so we would have had to have said, a limit of "X" amount of dollars and we needed to see the proposal because anything that was considered additional landscaping had to be approved by our Board. Now, you don't approve when you haven't seen the proposal, and it was supposed to be probably sent to us by email or snail mail, I don't know, but we were supposed to physically see it, but that never happened, and if, as I asked when we don't have a meeting, we still have a financial email to us. The checks that were paid, and when they were paid, and whatever, that would have been a red flag right there, it was like why are we paying this much, so somebody dropped the ball and I don't think it's this Board, I'm sorry, I don't.
Mr. Winkeljohn: No, I don't think that's what is being discussed, I think what is being discussed is your future operations.
Ms. Armstrong: I know, I understand, ok.
Mr. Winkeljohn: But unfortunately, you do have these bills, the work was done, and it's before you as a matter to bring up this topic, but also for you to approve them so that they get paid.
Ms. West: Isn't there any way to renegotiate them? I know it's been done and all of that but, they've been on our property a long time.
Mr. Barak: Harry signed off on this.
Ms. Wald: Are you talking about Cutter's Edge? Mr. Barak: On May 28th or whatever is here.
Ms. Wald: Look, it comes down to this, we don't have an agreement with Cutter's Edge, so it would be up to the condo association if they want to renegotiate, they're not going to go down, and that's just as to maintenance, remember this is extra work. As to the extra work, if you didn't authorize it, then I don't know.
Ms. Armstrong: What can we do then?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Well, to be honest with you, the situation is $1,000 you're talking about, and you have a relationship with this contractor, my advice just from my standpoint is, this isn't worth it. You could negotiate, you could, but I would recommend you move
forward, you're going to have a new manager, let the new manager establish that relationship with them, and staff can tell the new manager, hey this is your history, and you're not going to do that again, obviously but, your contractor, that's just as important and that's as valuable to you as $1,000 by all means. So, my advice is to obviously learn the lesson, and Juliana knows it better than anybody, she's excellent at this, she'll fix that part with your new manager, you'll have no problem.
Ms. Armstrong: Ok, so what do you need?
Ms. Duque: Exactly Paul, it's that simple, and I agree with Linda's statement as well, I don't believe it has to do with something that the Board didn't do, but in terms of clarity and moving forward in the future, how things need to be done because once again, the control right now as per the agreement that we have for those landscape items is on t the condo association. So, I'm not aware, just so the Board knows, of the new manager, I do know you guys have a regional director that is overseeing the day-to-day activities of the condo association, her name is Gladys and she has been in contact with me, and I actually told her that any additional items when we receive the invoices for the work performed, I told her that any additional landscape items cannot be done unless it's presented by them to the Board of Supervisors, that right now only the day-to-day activities as per the contract is what should be being performed in our District but, I'm not aware of the new property manager. I don't know if anyone from the Board knows but, as far as I know, the regional director is taking the day-to-day activities of the District.
Ms. West: She's a regional manager and she's there probably once a week, or maybe once every other week, so she has no thought about what's going on.
Mr. Winkeljohn: But the future intent is to replace the person that's no longer there, so this will all come together at that point.
Ms. West: And what happens if they don't replace them for a couple of months?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Well, you know, as a District you always have the option of pulling back the responsibilities and, performing them yourselves, managing it and overseeing it yourselves.
Ms. West: That Juliana would perform.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, your District staff would come up with a solution for you and present it back.
Ms. Wald: And you would have to pay for it, because remember you're not paying for field services.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, exactly, and so when you get to that point, if it gets to that point, I mean I won't speak for Juliana's free time, but in many situations, our staff will always rise to the occasion when you have an absence for an interim period, and then once you get the person, then it's solved, but if they choose to not hire somebody, Juliana will come back to you with a proposal on how to best approach it and that's always reasonable, but we'll fill that spot because you have to have that day-to-day eyes on the scene because you guys don't get paid enough to do that, the last time I checked, and neither do we. So, we'll fix that when you get to that point, but I think today's not the day to know that.
Ms. West: I still think it's something you should talk to Cutter's Edge on.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Staff can take that on, but not in today's meeting, we have no idea, so before you are the three invoices and it seems like there's a consensus that it's acceptable to ratify them by motion.
Ms. Wald:  I think they need to approve them too because they never approved
them.
 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Ok so approve and ratify, is there a motion?
Ms. West:  I don't approve, I don't, I think we really got the shaft on that, and of
course, there's nothing we can do now.
Mr. Winkeljohn: There's no recourse because the person is gone. Ms. West: So, there isn't anything we can do.
Ms. Wald: Well, I can't say there's no recourse, that's not 100% correct to be fair. You don't have to pay, anything outside of what is the maintenance that you have specifically under your maintenance agreement with the condo association, but keep in mind that if you don't pay it here out of your right pocket with COD, you're going to have to pay it out of your left pocket with your condo association. You're paying it either with the condo association, or the COD, you can only act as the COD Board, so, for Terry's point, is correct, anything that's beyond the agreement, or you haven't approved, and I can't find a motion, and he's looking at your old minutes with any specific amount to the condo association through the manager, then no you don't have to. That being said, you can go ahead and approve and ratify these if you choose to do so.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Is there a second? We have a motion on the floor. Ms. Armstrong: Well, I don't want to lose Cutter's Edge.
(At this point, several people were talking at one time, and no one conversation could be heard)

Mr. Barak: Actually, I would put this more on Harry at this point. Mr. Winkeljohn: That would be your representative.
Mr. Barak: Right, I would put this on them, because look at the date, this is a few days after we had our meeting, so, at this point, Harry signed off on it, and Harry was our point man here, he should have communicated with us, he's not here today, so he can't really speak for himself.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And on behalf of the landscaper, what is their recourse? Go rip it out? That's not an option at this point.
Ms. Wald: No, their recourse is to go under their agreement with the condo association.
Mr. Barak: Right.
Ms. Wald: My assistant just sent me the first amendment to the maintenance agreement because I didn't bring it with me.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Well, I'll use the word reaction instead of recourse, because the reaction of a business person, I'm advising you to move forward and lesson learned, and when the new manager person is there, you go down that road properly and get it established the right way where this never happens and it's written in your agreement, it's very clear, it seems like a one-off because this person was leaving perhaps, I don't know.
Ms. Wald: But this is not Cutter's Edge problem. Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, you never got to that point.
Ms. Wald: This is the problem of the condo association manager.
Ms. West: I know what you're saying legally, but I still think we could talk to them, and they can do what they always do.
Mr. Winkeljohn:	If you would like, the motion could read approved pending a conversation with staff to the contractor.
Ms. Wald: Well, you already have a motion on the table, so you have to take care of that first.
Mr. Winkeljohn: I understand, and my point is that you could modify the motion to allow one step of staff contacting them and seeing if there is wiggle room, if you want to do that, that's totally fine, it's $1,000, so you're going to spend $1,000 of people's time just to get to that, so it's starting to become more of an issue than the size of the problem.
Ms. West: Well, it's $1,000, where do you get that?
Mr. Winkeljohn: That's just the amount over your budget.
Ms. Duque: Paul, I don't think we want to go to the option because the work was already performed, the work was already done, so the proposal was provided to Harry, the amounts were provided to him and it was approved and moved forward with it, so I agree with you, we do have an agreement, there are certain stipulations in that agreement as Ginger was saying, and perhaps other options, but I do believe at this point, at the same time we just need to move forward and make sure the new person coming on board understands that dynamic and will not move forward with approving or jumping into the work without it being presented to the Board beforehand.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Thank you, any other discussion on the motion, or we can leave it as is, all in favor?
On MOTION by Mr. Barak seconded by Ms. Armstrong with 3 in favor, and 2 opposed, accepting and ratifying invoices #44341, #44423 and #44424 with Cutter's Edge Lawn & Maintenance, Inc. was approved.


	Manager
	Number of Registered Voters - 671
	Consideration of the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023 Meeting Schedule
	Discussion of Financial Disclosure Report from the Commission on Ethics and Reminder to File Annual Form

Mr. Winkeljohn: That brings us to manager's report. It's a statutory requirement to let you know the number of registered voters count, in your community it's 671, congratulations. Next, is your meeting schedule for 2023 is in your books, is there any disagreement with your current approach?
Ms. Armstrong: Are we still happy with 9:30 in the morning in our office? Mr. Winkeljohn: It's up to you all.
Ms. West: I'm not, because I have to go to work and then I have to leave work and I have to go back there, so that's sort of like throws me off.
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Ms. Christie: So, 12:00 is better?
Ms. West: Well, I don't like particularly 12:00, now 11:00 o'clock might be a little bit easier for me if that's ok with you guys.
Mr. Winkeljohn: What time did you suggest? Ms. Christie: 11:00.
Ms. Armstrong: Can you postpone this until after the election?
Ms. Wald: We can't postpone it until after the election, we can postpone it until September maximum.
Mr. Winkeljohn: The Statutes require that we publish the entire year's meeting schedule before September 30th.
Ms. Wald: Before the fiscal year is over.
Mr. Winkeljohn: But you can change it, it's a fairly nominal cost in your county to advertise.
Ms. Wald: Yes, you can always change it.
Ms. Armstrong: Well, I would suggest that the annual meeting that we're having right now.
Ms. Wald: You mean the final budget hearing.
Ms. Armstrong: Yes, whatever this is called, should be scheduled like at 6:00 o'clock at night for that one, only that one.
Ms. Wald: That's fine, and what you could do because you have to advertise that specially anyway, is when you pick your date, specifically for that meeting, then you pick that later nighttime.
Ms. Armstrong: And then we'll be able to get it in a city hall again? Mr. Winkeljohn: You can make that choice at that time.
Ms. Wald: I can't say if we're going to be able to get back into city hall because they're the ones that wouldn't let us back in, to begin with.
Ms. Armstrong:	Well, you know it might be COVID, it might be something else, you just don't know, alright.
Mr. Winkeljohn: So, for today's purposes, it's probably appropriate to approve this schedule and then at a later time pick an adjustment.
Ms. West: That's fine, I'm easy, that's fine.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Is there a motion to that effect?
Ms. DiComo: What's the motion for?
Mr. Winkeljohn: To adopt the current meeting schedule to meet the requirement.
Ms. Wald: The 9:30 time on Thursdays, and this meeting schedule does not go into effect until October 13, 2022.
Ms. DiComo: Oh, so it's going to be for all of next year. Ms. Wald: Yes, it's for next year.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, but you can change it, we're just getting it done for today.
Ms. Wald: I make sure Madeline understands, so what you have in front of you is a proposed notice of meeting schedule for the fiscal year 2023 which begins October 1, 2022. So, the schedule, and it's in your book, and Linda can show you, the schedule in the book shows us meeting back at the condo association offices at 9:30 in the morning starting on October 13, 2022, which is the second Thursday of each month. So, what you have on this schedule is the second Thursday of each month at 9:30 in the morning. If you approve this schedule and you don't like it, later on when we start it, then you can always change it to another date and time, and we just have to readvertise it. This has to be advertised before the October 13th date.
Ms. DiComo: I mean I like the time. Ms. West: I know.
Ms. DiComo: Unless a better time would be in the evening, but I don't think that was working with everybody's schedules.
Ms. Wald: If you want to switch to an evening meeting, and I didn't bring my full calendar, I know I brought it before, so I'll bring my full calendar for the next meeting, and we can look and see what works, and as I told you before, we could put someone else from my office into those meetings as well.
Mr. Winkeljohn: The same goes for management.
Mr. Barak: I think Linda's idea where the budget, this kind of meeting once a year, to have an evening meeting makes sense, and kind of to Nicole's point people are working and if they want to attend, they can, I think that makes sense.
Ms. Wald: Yes, maybe you do the proposed budget meeting and the final as your nighttime meetings.
Mr. Barak: Right.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And that's common, that's what a lot of Districts do. They do their business during the day to fit everybody's schedule but, to get the community's involvement, they do a couple of meetings a year at night.
Mr. Barak: Right.
Ms. West: Well, when we used to do it, it used to be at 1:30 or 2:00 in the afternoon.
Ms. Wald: Right, we used to do it in the afternoon over at the park.
Ms. West: Right, we used to do it in the late afternoon, and that sort of worked, and it was after lunch, and everybody got their stomachs full and then they have the meeting and then they go home.
Ms. DiComo: I mean I'm good with 3:00 or 4:00 o'clock, but I know you don't want that either.
Ms. West: We had it at 3:00 and you made us change it. Ms. DiComo: No, it was not at 3:00.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Alright, so Linda did approve the schedule as is and you can debate it and alter it at a future time, so was there a second?
On MOTION by Ms. Armstrong seconded by Mr. Barak with all in favor, accepting the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023 Meeting Schedule was approved.


Mr. Winkeljohn:	Alright, your financial disclosures, all of them but one has been received, and the person near me is the only one they don't have yet.
Ms. Christie: I don't have what?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Your financial disclosure form. Ms. Christie: Oh, I put it in.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Ok, it will show up later then.
Ms. Wald: Did you get an email saying they got it, Danielle? Everyone is good, but I'll look up Danielle's.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And after the meeting, we can check it out for you. Ms. Christie: Ok.
Ms. Wald: Yes, we'll look it up.
Mr. Winkeljohn: It's not vital in terms of actions, there's no action from the Board.
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Ms. Wald: So, we're going to find it, don't worry about it, we'll help her out.


FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Financial Reports
	Approval of Check Run Summary
	Combined Balance Sheet

Mr. Winkeljohn: Moving on to your financial reports, your balance sheet and income statement and check run summary are in the packets. If those are in order, and one of them is upside down in my book, and I don't know if that happened to yours, but the information is there. Are there any questions on the financial reports?
Ms. West: Are we getting all the information from Cutter's Edge? Are we getting all the invoices from Cutter's Edge?
Mr. Winkeljohn: It looks like it. I mean they're being presented. Ms. Wald: Juliana, can answer that.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, and she's having connection issues, but I can ask her. Ms. West: Ok.
Ms. Wald: Let's put it this way, if we didn't get them, they wouldn't be paid and they wouldn't show up. Ok, Juliana just answered, and she said yes.
Ms. West: Ok.
Mr. Winkeljohn:	Are there any other questions?	Is there a motion to accept the financial reports?

On MOTION by Ms. Armstrong seconded by Ms. West with all in favor, the Check Run Summary and the Combined Balance Sheet were approved.


SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Supervisors	Requests
Audience Comments
 and
Mr. Winkeljohn: Are there any other Supervisor items or audience comments? Ms. Armstrong: Just a question, when are they going to start on the lakes?
Ms. Wald: We can't, we have to do a contract first, and we have to have money, you can't do anything without money. Linda, we can't enter into a contract unless we know we have the funding to do it.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And you haven't bid this either, correct? Ms. Wald: No.
Mr. Winkeljohn: So, there's a bid process that takes a couple of months also. Ms. Armstrong: Right, so we're talking again next year.
Ms. Wald: Right, it's next year Linda. Ms. Armstrong: But when next year?
Ms. Wald: Linda, I would say next fiscal year, let's say, and probably we'll talk about it in our November meeting, and make sure that we have everything, all our ducks in a row, and if we have to go out to bid, then go out to bid, if it comes under the statutory amount and we don't have to go out to bid that's great, but I would say in our November meeting we'll have a better idea, and then money will start coming in late December and January.
Ms. Armstrong: The tax money. Ms. Wald: Yes.
Mr. Winkeljohn: So, you'll be letting the contract most likely in a 6-month window from today, and then the contractor's schedule is set by the contractor.
Ms. Wald: Right because we have to have the money to do it.
Ms. Armstrong: Well, it's like we got the engineer's report, and I believe that was maybe February or March, so by the time we actually put wheels on the ground to do all of this, we're talking about a year.
Ms. Wald: No, I would say sometime in late spring, next year.
Mr. Winkeljohn: So, you're on schedule for that unless something else happens.
Ms. Wald: Yes, you'll have a good idea by the end of January of what you have collected, and so, if you have collected enough funds, with the small amount that you have in reserve, if you collect enough funds, then you'll have enough money, and you could proceed forward. If you don't have enough money, you can't proceed forward with the agreement, but you could have an agreement in place beforehand obviously, with a date, and then now you're not doing the notice to proceed until you have everything that you feel comfortable with moving forward.
Ms. Armstrong: And what if we just get one bid?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Then you'll have a choice, to go with it or redo it. Ms. Wald: Yes.
Ms. Armstrong: So, we won't have to scramble or anything? Ms. Wald: No.
Ms. Armstrong: I'm just worried because when we had the bad rains and the lakes come up to the bulkheads.
Ms. Wald: I understand, but you can't enter into an agreement until you have the money. Now, an individual can do that, but a governmental entity cannot, it's against the law.
Ms. Armstrong: I'm just worried that they're going to come back and say, wow, when we said we were only going to have to put in these things, now we're going to have to get all the topsoil and build it up.
Ms. Wald: Again Linda, you don't have control over that, it's a process, it's good to proceed forward with early on, which is why I'm saying probably around November with that process, put it out for bid, have everything done, your District engineer already has a report, he'll be able to put that together very quickly and proceed forward.
Ms. Armstrong: The bid that we put out for just getting the engineer and the reports, we had no results because we put it out around the holidays.
Mr. Winkeljohn: It's July now, and the bid process can get started, the engineer will draft the bid specifications, put the contracts together, that can get out, and you can get the contractors back well before December if you want to, that's very feasible.
Ms. Armstrong: But we can't sign a contract.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, you can't enter into the contract.
Ms. Wald: We can't enter into the contract until we have the money.
Mr. Winkeljohn: But you can put it into the bid specs, hey this contract is for money that's been approved and in the 2023 fiscal year budget, the project won't start until after that, you can spell all that out, that's not a big deal.
Ms. Armstrong: Now is there a cost to that? Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, of course.
Ms. Wald: There's a cost to everything.
Mr. Winkeljohn: I mean Juliana will walk you through this project when you get to it, right now today, was approving the budget, congratulations you've done that.
Ms. Duque: Paul, can you hear me? Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, perfectly.
Ms. Duque: Paul?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes.
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Ms. Duque: Ok, so I just wanted to remind the Board that we approved all of the meeting schedule every month, but we do not meet every month. Right now, the purpose of the meeting was the budget. Now in August, what I could do is, I could reach out to Juan Alvarez and let him know that we have approved the increase, but we don't have money yet, and we need to have the money, but that doesn't mean we can't start doing some work with Alvarez Engineers and getting the bids and getting all of that process running so we don't have to wait towards the end of the year. I can reach out to Juan, see how, or what's the best way of approaching this process according to his experience and knowing that we will not be able to enter in the agreement, so that we can discuss during the August meeting, and we have a better plan.
Ms. Armstrong: Ok.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Excellent, thank you. Are there any other Supervisor comments or audience comments?
Ms. Vernon: I have question, here is the basic number, $1,518.47 on page 2. My question is, is that going to be the roundabout number, and can people frontload their escrow accounts now, can I put that out to residents if they'd like to frontload their escrow accounts starting this month before November?
Ms. Wald: You can if you wish. Ms. Vernon: Ok.
Ms. Wald: I mean they just approved that budget, so that's what is going to be placed on the tax roll.
Ms. Vernon:	Right, so if they wanted to start frontloading their escrow account they could start now.
Ms. Wald:	Yes, sure. When the city told me they were increasing their rates, immediately wrote a check to my company, so they could do it now.
Ms. Vernon: Right, because obviously, if they don't want to be hit with it later. Ms. Wald: Yes, that's a good idea.
Ms. Vernon: Ok.
Ms. Armstrong:	I'm thinking with the escrow, the way the insurance has skyrocketed too, the escrow is going to be increased because of insurance.
Ms. Vernon:	You should shop your insurance every year, my insurance went down, and I got an escrow chart back.
Ms. Wald: That's for another day, talk to her after the meeting. Mr. Winkeljohn: Are there any other comments?
Ms. DiComo: I just wanted to find out, we can't start anything until we have money.
Ms. Wald: Correct.
Ms. DiComo: Ok, now we have money. Ms. Wald: You don't have money.
Mr. Winkeljohn: You don't have the money yet, the money won't be until late December, you'll have the authorization for the money.
Ms. DiComo: Is that just one payment?
Ms. Wald: No, here's how it works. So, the money comes in dribs and drabs from the Tax Collector, Property Assessor, to the District. So, right now you're at probably 90% or something from this past one.
Mr. Winkeljohn: On the very last page of your financials is the chart that tracks how the tax money comes in, and you can see the dates and you can see the amounts, and you can see the percentage that came in each amount.
Ms. DiComo: That's why I'm asking the question.
Mr. Winkeljohn: So, right here you can see that every year is almost identical, late December you get one deposit of almost 60% or 70%, in January you get another 10% or 15%, somewhere in that range.
Ms. DiComo: Yes, but that's not my question. Ms. Wald: What's your question?
Ms. DiComo: My question, we use most of that to pay the bills. Ms. Wald: Yes, we do.
Ms. DiComo: Right, now this is a new bill, and this is a high bill. Ms. Wald: Correct.
Ms. DiComo:	So, how much are we giving them?	We can't give them the full amount; we don't have that.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Who? The contractor? Ms. DiComo: Yes.
Mr. Winkeljohn: You don't have a contractor. Ms. DiComo: Alright, the engineers.
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Mr. Winkeljohn: They're not spending any money until they're authorized.
Ms. Wald: Hold on, let me go back a couple of steps. I think I understand what you're saying. Yes, you're correct, this money that you are going to be collecting from the Property Appraiser starting December of this year, of 2022, is for more than just this project, you are correct. That's why you have to wait until you're almost fully funded to actually proceed forward with a contract with a contractor to actually build this up. So, if you're looking at your historical history.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And let me ask the attorney to stay out of the finance business for a second.
Ms. Wald: Ok, go ahead.
Mr. Winkeljohn: It will all be handled exactly as she said but, you're also funded for the entire year in January, by January you have almost 80% or 90% of your money, so you don't have those expenses. So, you're going to be totally fine but, your professional is Juliana and the accountants, they will not let you do anything that isn't funded, so you don't have to worry about that.
Mr. Barak: But I think more to what she was asking is, are we paying up front for the entire project?
Mr. Winkeljohn: No.
Mr. Barak: No, so you're paying in stages.
Ms. Wald: No, so Madeline, when this goes out to bid, there's going to be a draft contract, specifically as to what you're looking at, they get paid in stages. Usually, it's and I'd have to go back to some of my old ones, usually, it's 10% for mobilization, mobilization for them to get all the equipment and start buying all the product and doing all that stuff, getting onsite, that's 10% that you pay in advance.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And they call them progress payments, as they progress, they get
a fee.
Ms. Wald: Then they get more payments as they go on, so then it might be
another 30% thereafter, and I'd have to look at a contract to tell you exactly.	So, they don't go 100% right after you sign the contract, and we don't do that with any contract.
Ms. DiComo: I realize all that, but every year we get money in, and we use it, how much do we have left? How much do we have in our account right now?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Alright, so let me back you up a little bit, right now as of.
Ms. Armstrong: It's 1/12 at a time, and we've got 90% of it there, we're only using 12% right now for January, for maintenance, we pay maintenance, the whole amount is there.
Ms. DiComo: Ok, just think of it over the year, over the year we get in so much money, whatever it is.
Mr. Barak: Because of the assessment, we're getting more. Ms. DiComo: We're getting more?
Mr. Barak: You're getting more because of the assessment. Ms. DiComo: Oh, we're increasing it, ok.
Mr. Barak: Correct.
Ms. DiComo: Ok, so that's the answer.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, and to everyone's point, you couldn't start that contract today because you won't get that new money, increased money, until December.
Ms. DiComo: No, I was looking at what we normally get in.
Mr. Winkeljohn: In this business, we call it your monthly burn rate, like how much money do you require to stay afloat every month to pay your bills, and yours is fairly nominal, it's not a huge amount.
Ms. Wald: Madeline, they're never going to let you be in the red. Mr. Winkeljohn: Excellent, good questions.

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Adjournment
Mr. Winkeljohn: Seeing no more discussion or hearing no comments, is there a motion to adjourn?

On MOTION by Ms. West seconded by Mr. Barak with all in favor, the meeting was adjourned.
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